Sarah Langat
ELECTRONIC DRUG PRESCRIPTION ON ACHIEVING EXCEL- LENCE IN NURSING
Thesis
CENTRIA UNIVERSITY OF APPLIED SCIENCES Degree Programme in Nursing December 2016



ABSTRACT

CENTRIA UNIVERSITY OF	Date	Author	
APPLIED SCIENCES	December 2016	Langat Sarah	
Unit of Kokkola- Pietarsaari			
Degree programme	·		
Nursing			
Name of thesis			
Electronic Drug Prescription on Achi	eving Excellence in Nurs	ing	
Instructor		Pages	
Ulla Timlin Principal Lecturer		25+4	
Supervisor			
Timo Kinnunen, Senior Lecturer, MN	NSc		

The purpose of this study was to identify how electronic drug prescription (E-Prescription) helps nurses achieve excellence in nursing field. The study was aiming to find whether E-Prescription was important in nursing work and how nurses actively responded and participated in the eHealth program. In addition, the study also provides more information as to why E-Prescription is widely used in the current health care.

The research was conducted as a literature review. Data was acquired from different databases such as, Science Direct, SAGE publications, Emerald, EBSCO and PubMed. 11 articles were selected, as they met the criteria employed by the researcher (i.e. not older than ten years and focusing on the topic of research).

The articles selected were both quantitative and qualitative. The findings revealed that the implementation of e-prescription in health care enhances the ability of a nurse to provide quality care that is efficient, cost-saving and time-saving. As such, this finding highlights the need for the implementation of e-prescription in nursing.

Key words

E-Health, medication, electronic prescribing, information technology, drug-related problems, health care, nursing, medical error

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

DRP Drug Related Problems

HIT Health Information Technology

PDMPs Prescription Drug Monitoring Programs

E-Prescription Electronic Prescription

ADEs Adverse drug events

MDS Medication decision support

KELA The Social Insurance Institution

EHRs Electronic Health Records

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ABSTRACT

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1 INTRODUCTION	1
2 ELECTRONIC PRESCRIPTION (E-PRESCRIPTION)	3
1.1 Medication Error	
1.2 Advantages of Electronic Prescription in Nursing	
1.2.1 Cost Savings and Time Saving Associated in E-prescription	
1.2.2 Reduction of Prescription Errors	
1.2.3 Communication between Health Care Professions	
3 PURPOSE AND RESEARCH QUESTIONS	8
4 METHODOLOGY	9
4.1 Literature Review	9
4.2 Data Collection	9
4.3 Data Analysis	10
5 RELIABILITY AND VALIDITY	13
6 RESULTS	15
6.1 Benefits Associated with the Implementation of E-Prescription	15
6.1.1 Reduction of Prescription Errors	15
6.1.2 Improvement of Communication	
6.2.3 Cost Savings Associated with E-prescribing	17
7 DISCUSSION	18
7.1 Methodological Considerations and Limitations	18
7.2 Ethics	18
7.3 Discussion of Findings	18
7.4 Implication of the Study to Nursing	20
7.5 Implication of the Study to the Learning Process	20
8 CONCLUSION	21
9 REFERENCES	22
APPENDIX: RESULTS	26

1 INTRODUCTION

Nursing is among the most rewarding professions. However, it is a challenging and exhausting profession physically, psychologically and emotionally. The goal of nurses today is to provide best-practice care that is efficient, cost-effective, and evidence-based in different health institutions. According to Taegtmeyer (2011), medication is essential in health care because it enables the prevention and treatment of many conditions or diseases. However, medication errors and drug-related problems (DRP) are more frequent and it causes suffering to the patients and massive costs to society or to the government. Medication management is a complex process, and the implementation of the medication process requires the cooperation of various healthcare professionals including the nurses. Nurses take a long period of their working time on each shift handling various aspects of medication management and administration. Advanced health information technology (HIT) in nursing, is absolutely helping nurses to provide good care for their patients or clients. In relation to this, Taegtmeyer (2011) points out that HIT in current world is used in collecting, storing, retrieving, and transferring clinical and administrative health information electronically.

Smith, 2006 & Samadbeik, (2013) informed that electronic prescription (E-Prescription), is a part of current e-health approaches as the electronic handling of prescriptions by health care professionals. E-prescription is a way where the prescriber, for instance the doctor or any other health care provider who is legally allowed to give patients' prescriptions electronically and send them directly to the pharmacy or other health institutions in the case of continuation of care. Electronic prescription has widely opened the possibility of connecting a big range of health care services and facilities. Nurses are primary users of e-prescription. On every ward or other health institutions an e-prescription system is always in use. Once the medicine has been prescribed, the nurse adds the medicine to the medicine list of the patient and distributes the doses to specific drug round times (Smith, 2006; Samadbeik, 2013). Moreover, he/she indicates in the documentation at which the first dose is to be given.

In Finland, e-prescription is widely used. The health care facilities are undergoing changes due to the implementation of the electronic prescription system mostly known as 'e-Resepti' in Finnish. The main reasons behind this implementation were to improve patient safety and savings in operational costs. The prescription is entered into a centralised database called the

prescription centre. The Social Insurance Institution also known as 'Kela' in Finland controls this prescription centre. The overall medication of the patient is first checked from the prescription centre on demand and then the information is available in the health care services but only to the doctors and nurses treating the patient following the patient's consent to view his or her information.

Despite the wide application of the e-prescription system in Finland, limited information/literature exists concerning the effectiveness of this system in enhancing the efficiency of nursing operations. Besides, there is no literature on the deployment of the e-prescription system in the country, as well as how the system is handled. As such, there is a significant need to execute a research with the aim of establishing the benefits of this system in order to encourage more organizations to adopt and implement it. Such an undertaking will also provide a suitable platform on which the mechanisms that can be employed in further improvement of the system can be identified or developed (Martinson & Vallikivi, 2016)

Nurses play a significant role in health care institution and need to ensure that the latest information and knowledge about the evolving HIT needs are being met. Rahmner et al., (2014) asserted that, to gain such information, they need to undergo different trainings and share ideas between other health care providers to enable them improve the quality and readiness of health care service delivery in all areas of care.

The purpose of this study was to identify how electronic drug prescription helped nurses achieve excellence in nursing field. The study was aiming to find whether electronic prescription was important in nursing work and how nurses actively responded and participated in the e-Health program. In addition, the study also provides more information as to why e-Prescription is widely used in the current health care.

2 ELECTRONIC PRESCRIPTION (E-PRESCRIPTION)

Prescribing of drugs is one of the most numerous interventions done by health care professionals related to prevention or curing many diseases, which also helps to increase quality of life among patients. Different age groups often use medicine depending on the morbidity, age, gender and socioeconomic factors. According to Smith (2006) & Samadbeik (2013), appropriate use of medications is when a professional health care provider accomplishes four objectives. The first objective is prescribing appropriate drugs to the patients according to the patients' clinical needs. The second goal is to give proper doses that meet individual requirements. The third aspect is ensuring that adequate time is provided to the patient for consumption of the medicine. Finally, the fourth objective is the aspect of lowest cost to patients and communities' expenses.

Many technologies are currently evolving in the development of e-health; hence, the internet will clearly continue to be the primary driver in the foreseen future of health care. Health care providers or professionals and patients or clients are turning toward the internet, which has greatly enhanced the reach of the potential customer base. This standard of technology has started to make the health care providers comply with participating in the world of e-prescription. Smith (2006) & Taegtmeyer (2011) asserted that, with the huge amount of legal drugs increasing, e-prescription has brought a number of benefits to all parties involved in the exchange of patient prescription information

Soon after the implementation of e-prescription, it was found out that weaknesses related to reliability, functionality, and usability could affect patient safety. For an improved e-prescription, the need of a holistic approach of technology users to help in implementation of the system was taken into consideration. Therefore, sharing of information, support in decision making, education, as well as clarification of responsibilities was to involve the health care providers which included nurses (Rahmner et al. 2004). These changes have extremely helped nurses increase patient safety because they get to view the medical list of patients and administrate medicines as required. According to Smith (2006) & Taegtmeyer (2011) nurses are now able to minimize the DRP due to the use of drugs and the proportions of people prescribed multiple drugs are decreasing.

In parallel to the improvement in technology, e-prescription, which has been developed to prevent errors, involves direct transmission of prescriptions from the working environment of physicians to pharmacies or other parts of health care facilities via computers. E-Prescription systems are able to store all updated information of a prescription in electronic environment. Health care institutions and pharmacies can access prescription data to the extent they are authorized to. In relation to this, Sebetci & Ceti (2015) argued that all activities regarding the registered supply, refund, and follow-up of medications can be performed in electronic environment.

Prescription drug monitoring programs (PDMPs) are electronic databases that collect data on controlled substances. These databases consist of a suitable way that doctors and nurses responsible for the patient are able to check the amount and types of drugs that have been prescribed for the patient by other health care providers (Worley, 2012; Samadbiek, 2013). Therefore, PDMPs have been known to decrease illegal drugs for non-medical use target. However, health care providers must register to use the program and for them to be able to access the patient's files, they need to enter patient's name and date of birth. On the other hand, Worley, (2012); Samadbeik (2013) & LeMire et al., (2012) point out that the information concerning the party or individual that has accessed the patients' data can be also retrieved.

1.1 Medication Error

According to Villasenor & Piscotty (2016), executions of medical orders happen to be a significant aspect of patient's care and the healing process. Besides, it is the principle element of nursing performance, and contributes significantly to patient safety. Escobar-Rodriguez et al., (2012) informed that, errors associated with medication can significantly impact treatment cost and patient safety and cause hazards for patients as well as their families. The issuance of medicine is one of the prominent responsibilities of nurses, as the resulting errors may lead to unintended, serious outcomes for patients. Escobar-Rodriguez et al., (2012) added that errors arising from medication can lead to adverse consequences like increased period of hospitalization, increased medical expense, and increased mortality.

According to Black (2013), nursing medication errors are often common despite these errors being caused by all healthcare team members. Black (2013) added that the principal reason for the prevalence of nursing medication errors is that nurses spend approximately 40% of

their working time administering medicines in hospitals. Devine et al., (2010)) pointed out that, nursing medication error cases or rates are high in both the developing and developed nations. According to Devine et al., (2010) approximately one-third of complications arising from medicines are associated with medication errors.

Medication management is one of the main responsibilities of a nurse in any kind of health care setting. It is a complex process, which involves different phases. These phases include, prescribing, transcribing, ordering, dispensing, supplying, administering and storing. The nurses particularly deal with ordering, administering and storing. Baril et al., (2014); Lisby et al., (2012) & Allison et al., (2015) informed that error at each phase of the process may occur and this will influence patient's safety. It also brings extra costs to individuals and has financial impacts on the government. Medication administration by the nurse is a vital phase since most medication prescription and dispensing errors are detected during this phase. Medication errors have many causes. Some of these causes can be poor medication-knowledge and omitting to clarify before prescribing or administering. Furthermore, improper nursing practices, lack of supervision and poor documentation. Most of these medication errors are related to human factors.

According to Baril et al., (2014); Lisby et al., (2012) & Allison et al., (2015), electronic prescription has been shown to reduce consistently drug prescription errors. Baril et al., (2014) continued to elaborate that, when a medication error has occurred, the nurse has a responsibility to report immediately any incident or accident that had resulted from her actions or omissions so that the situation can be corrected without delay. Therefore, immediate actions must be taken to increase patient safety.

1.2 Advantages of Electronic Prescription in Nursing

According to Samadbeik (2013), implementing electronic prescription system has overcome many DRP compared to paper prescription process which offers numerous advantages. When all the patient's prescriptions are entered in the Prescription Centre, the doctor and the nurse with the patient's consent, check his/her overall medication history and this will help to prevent possible adverse drug interactions and overlapping.

1.2.1 Cost Savings and Time Saving Associated in E-prescription

Cost savings and reduced expenses of health care for patients and health care providers including nurses are achieved throughout the prescription processing system. Large savings mostly occur with the reduction of visits to primary care offices and emergency rooms. Previously, nurses indicated that their work associated with drug prescribing was both time-consuming and exhausting (Rahmner et al., 2004). Usually before a patient is prescribed medicines the doctor or nurses ask the patients about their current or past drug use. Most patients especially the elderly do not remember the dosage or strength, and sometimes not even the names. Consequently, nurses could have to call the health care center, nursing home or families to be able to obtain information. However, sometimes information cannot be obtained on time or even at all and they still have to treat the patient's symptoms especially during emergencies. Instead, Rahmner et al., (2004) argued that electronic prescribing has opened the possibility of connecting a wide range of e-health support services directly to the prescribing process, which further has reduced the error rates.

Black (2013) added that connecting pharmacy and physician systems has minimized paper work, as well as the associated errors that can arise from dependence on handwritten notes, which in turn has produced cost and time savings for all individuals and parties involved. According to Villaseñor & Piscotty (2016), the potential of e-prescription for cost saving is estimated to be \$28 billion every year in the U.S. These researchers added that, costs savings associated with e-prescription are created via improved access to formularies on the part of providers and improved efficiency. Devine et al., (2010) point out that the time spent handling clarifications is also reduced in a significant manner when using e-prescriptions, thereby enabling providers to focus adequate attention on patient care. Escobar-Rodriguez et al., (2012) added that, e-prescription has led to the reduction of cases of pharmacy-initiated clarifications, thereby decreasing the time spent by providers and pharmacists on the phone and therefore shortening the time needed to fill in prescriptions and delivering them to patients.

1.2.2 Reduction of Prescription Errors

At the point of patients' care currently, medication errors are decreasing gradually. The nurse is able to identify the prescribed drugs, which provides a safe instrument for electronic access to updated medical information and patient medication history during medical care. Lisby et al., (2012) & Taegtmeyer (2011) added that nurses help in analyzing patients' electronically

stored prescriptions in order to detect potential DRP for instance drug-drug interactions, high dose, drug-allergy reactions and inappropriate drugs for the patient. This finding is supported by the finding of Escobar-Rodriguez et al., (2012) that established that, e-prescription decreases errors associated with medication and prescriptions and has led to limited cases of call-backs from pharmacies for clarification from physicians.

Black (2013) also pointed out that e-prescription contributes to the efficiency of patient care by streamlining the process involved in delivering prescriptions to the pharmacy, obtaining refills, and dispensing medication. As such, the chances of losing prescriptions are limited. The researcher added that, e-prescription eliminates errors associated with illegibility and assists providers to make informed or better decisions concerning the medications that should be prescribed in relation to the histories of patients and allergy data, which are found within systems integrated with electronic health records (EHRs).

1.2.3 Communication between Health Care Professions

E-prescription provides safe, two-way and electronic communication between nurses and other health care professions (Lisby et al., 2012). This finding is in line with the finding of Taegtmeyer (2012) that established that; e-prescription offers a secure, mutual communication between nurses and other health care practitioners. This has improved inter and intrateam work in medical field. Increased legibility, correction, sharing knowledge for better patient care had also been seen. In addition, it has reduced improper verbal relationship and poor handwritten prescription. According to Lisby et al., (2012), nurses can also store prescription data securely and communicate to other members of the health care team without the risk of paper medical records being lost. Escobar-Rodriguez et al., (2012) added that e-prescription has enabled prescribers to electronically convey or send prescription information of patients to pharmacy and within health care settings, thereby improving communication efficiency.

3 PURPOSE AND RESEARCH QUESTIONS

The purpose of this study was to identify how electronic drug prescription (E-Prescription) helps nurses achieve excellence in nursing field. The study was aiming to find whether E-Prescription was important in nursing work and how nurses actively responded and participated in the eHealth program. In addition, the study also provides more information as to why E-Prescription is widely used in the current health care. The study aims to address the following research questions:

- 1. How does electronic drug prescription (e-prescription) help nurses achieve excellence in nursing field?
- 2. What is the significance of e-prescription in nursing work?
- 3. What is the response and participation of nurses in the e-health program?

4 METHODOLOGY

This chapter presents the method that was employed to execute the research. The chapter begins by focusing on the literature review, data collection, and data analysis.

4.1 Literature Review

Building a framework in research depends upon using previous work or studies in such a way as to provide an overview of a concept, theory, or literature base. The literature review demonstrates how the study advances knowledge by presenting existing knowledge to build a case that clearly shows the gap the study will address. Literature review has five functions. First, it builds a framework in the study. Second, it exhibits how a study advances knowledge. Third, it deliberates the study. Fourth, it assesses research design and instrumentation, and fifth, it provides a reference point for interpretation of findings. The introduction section of research or study usually includes the problem statement, purpose, and a discussion of the relevant literature, concepts that build the argument for the importance of the study. The literature used to build the framework is then used to connect the findings, discussions and conclusion to the introduction section of the study (Tonette & Rocco, 2009).

Considering the findings of the existing literature, it can be noted that researchers have managed to identify the benefits of e-prescription in the nursing discipline. E-prescription offers several benefits to nurses. These benefits are provision of secure, mutual communication, reduction of cost and time associated with prescriptions, and reductions of errors during prescription (Tonette & Rocco, 2009). In relation to this, this study will focus on investigating the contribution of e-prescription in enhanced efficiency in nursing.

4.2 Data Collection

The research was conducted as a literature review. Data was acquired from different data-bases such as, Science Direct, SAGE publications, Emerald, EBSCO and Pub Med using different keywords to help in answering the question: How does e-prescription helps nurses to achieve excellence in nursing care? The following key words: e-medication, e-health, medication, e-prescribing, electronic prescribing, information technology, drug-related problems, health care, nursing and medical error were used. A comprehensive search strategy included all articles published in English between the years of 2004-2015. These articles were screened by title, screened by abstract and screened by full text. The articles that were relevant to the

topic and those that could answer the research question were selected for inclusion and exclusion in the research.

4.3 Data Analysis

Data was acquired from different databases such as, Science Direct, SAGE publications, Emerald, EBSCO and Pub Med and the results were categorized according to the key words used. The keywords: Electronic drug prescription and e-prescription, which yielded 21 articles, 11 of the articles contained the abstract and 10 of them contained full text, 17 of them did not meet the criteria and the author was able to read and analyse them and 4 of the articles were able to answer the research question.

The keywords: information technology, e-health, healthcare, and nursing yielded 30 articles in totals. 15 of the articles contained only an abstract without a full text, and 15 of them contained full text, which the author was able to read and analyse and 28 of them did not meet the criteria for inclusion. The author managed to select 2 of the articles which were able to answer the research question.

Other keywords used were; e-medication, medication, which yielded 17 articles in total and 7 of the articles contained abstract and 10 of them contained full text, 14 of them did not answer the research question and the author was able to obtain 3 of the articles which were able to answer the research questions.

The keywords also used included drug-related problems and medical error, which yielded 14 articles in total and 8 of the articles contained only an abstract without a full text. 6 of them contained full text, 12 of them did not meet the criteria for inclusion. The author was able to obtained 2 articles which were able to answer the research question. All the articles that managed to meet the selection criteria were 11, as shown in table 1 below:

The articles selected for inclusion were:

- 1. Written in English.
- 2. Published and reviewed journals between 2004 and 2015.
- 3. Contained a specific research method of data collection and analysis.
- 4. Involved the keywords as main things that the author was going to research on.

Reasons for excluding articles were based on the criteria provided by (Coughlan et al., 2013) as shown below:

- 1. The articles did not answer the relevant study question.
- 2. The title did not relate to the research question.
- 3. The original text was not accessible for instance only abstracts were available.
- 4. Written in other languages

The table below shows the criteria and data selection process that was employed in the study:

Table 1: Criteria and Data Selection

Database and search words	Screened by title	Screened by abstract	Screened by reading full text	Excluded (not meeting inclusion criteria)	Included (relevant to research questions)
Science Direct, SAGE publications, Emerald, EBSCO and Pub Med. Electronic drug prescription and E- prescription	21	11	10	17	4
Science Direct, SAGE publications, Emerald, EBSCO and Pub Med. information technology, Ehealth, healthcare and nursing	30	15	15	28	2

Science Direct,	17	7	10	14	3
SAGE publica-	1,	•			
tions, Emerald,					
EBSCO and Pub					
Med. E- medica-					
tion, medication					
Science Direct,	14	8	6	12	2
SAGE publica-					
tions, Emerald,					
EBSCO and Pub					
Med.					
drug-related problems, medi-					
cal error					
Cur C 1101					
Total	82	41	41	71	11
Total					

In table 1, above, it can be seen that the articles that managed to meet the criteria of selection were 11. These articles were scrutinized using quantitative and qualitative study methodologies.

5 RELIABILITY AND VALIDITY

According to Colepicolo (2015), reliability is one of the criteria that are composed of quality and credibility. The study was done using reliable articles from different scientific databases, which included the following: Science Direct, SAGE publications, Emerald, EBSCO and Pub Med. These databases contained journals for health care sector. The databases also provide free access to various journals that contained full-text articles. In each database, the author used the same procedure and criteria in selection in order to acquire valid and reliable information.

Adequate care was taken during the selection of the study articles to enhance the validity of the research. Once the articles were obtained, they were read thoroughly followed by the comparison of the main points to enable the identification of their relevance in terms of content and the results obtained. These articles were also critically appraised for validity.

Colepicolo (2015) defines critical appraisal as a systematic process employed to point out the weaknesses and strengths of a research article with the aim of assessing the validity and usefulness of research findings. The appraisal process focuses on the assessment of the appropriateness of the research or study design selected for research questions. Key methodological features associated with the study designs employed in these articles were also evaluated. Furthermore, the appropriateness of the statistical methods employed, as well as their subsequent interpretation, the research relevance to the study, and potential conflicts of interests were considered.

When it comes to the aspect of ethics, all information that was derived from the secondary articles (i.e. reviewed articles) was referenced with the relevant source (i.e. citing the names of the authors associated with the research. Quotes were not copied in a direct manner from these sources, but rather paraphrased. Prior to the making of conclusions, noted points within the research were compared in a careful manner. In the referencing section, all the researchers that partook in the various studies were acknowledged by providing their names in the referencing of their work.

The aspect of bias was also taken into consideration. The researcher eliminated any aspect of bias by ensuring that all the articles that had relevant information were appropriately incorporated in the study. It is also vital to note that source of the study information were only ob-

tained from databases that provided free access, as this indicated the willingness of the original researchers to allow other scholars to refer to their work.

6 RESULTS

According to Devine et al., (2010), one of the vital aspects in the delivery of quality patient care is elimination of medical errors. In relation to this, Pagan et al., (2009) pointed out that numerous deaths often result from errors associated with medication, and mistakes in medication filling and prescribing happen to be the prevalent sources of medical errors. Mcmullen et al., (2013) defined medical error as preventable circumstances that may result into or lead to harm or inappropriate employment of medications to patients during the use of medication by a consumer, patient, or healthcare professional. Pevnick et al., (2014) argued that these errors or mistakes can be experienced in any stage of the medication employment process including errors associated with prescription to dispensation of drug, as well as monitoring how the drug is taken. Jeffrey & Mary (2009) pointed out that the ambulatory care happens to be the most common area or place where errors associated with medication prescriptions often occur. (See Table 2 in the appendix for more details).

An adverse drug event (ADEs) can arise due to non-preventable or preventable medical interventions associated with medications. Sebetci, et al., (2014) pointed out that ADEs are perceived as preventable when they result from medication errors or mistakes, while non-preventable ADEs are mistakes that could cause harm to patients or to a patient. Crosson et al., (2011) asserted that an error cannot harm a patient when it is detected prior to it reaching the patient or when it lacks a negative impact.

6.1 Benefits Associated with the Implementation of E-Prescription

6.1.1 Reduction of Prescription Errors

Jeffrey & Mary (2009) informed that, patient safety can be enhanced via e-prescribing by increasing the legibility of e-prescription, reducing the time needed to prescribe and dispense medication to patients, and limiting ADEs and medication errors. When e-prescription is a component of a system of EHR, the checking of prescriptions can be done for interaction with the medications prescribed to patients, allergies, and health conditions. Pagan et al., (2009) established that the rates of errors fell from 43% per 100 prescriptions to 6% per 100 prescriptions within a year, approximately a seventh of the former level following the implementation of e-prescribing. The finding of Jeffrey & Mary (2009) that the rates of prescribing error declined from 47% for every 100 prescriptions to 9% for every 100 prescriptions in a year, after the implementation of e-prescription, also support this finding.

In a prospective case study or research of 15 physicians executed by Grossman et al., (2007), the researchers established that the errors associated with prescription declined from 36.7% for every 100 prescriptions to 11.6% for every 100 prescriptions within just a year after the implementation of e-prescription (See table 1 in the appendix).

According to Sebetci et al., (2014), most of the e-prescription systems integrate medication decision support (MDS), which assists providers to prevent errors during the prescription process and ADEs. This intervention checks for drug-allergy, drug-disease, and drug-drug interactions. It also checks for dosing recommendations and drug cost. On the contrary, Devine et al., (2010) and Pevnick et al., (2014) established limited proof concerning the benefit of MDS employed in this way to patient safety, and the limitation of medication errors in relation to execution of the prescription as a component of the stand-alone model or system.

6.1.2 Improvement of Communication

E-prescription contributes to the improvement of communication during the process of prescribing, leading to efficiency. Even though the inputting of a novel prescription takes approximately 20 seconds more for every patient in relation to prescription writing, the fact that limited clarification is required for e-prescription offsets this longer period, as it saves time Sebetci, et al., (2014). More of the prescribers' time was spent on computer, which was an average of 8 minutes 25 patients each day Sebetci, et al., (2014). Devine et al., (2010) also established that the reduction of medication error was due to the enhanced communication among physicians due to the presence of an e-prescription system. The increase in efficiency is evident in the limited issues and paper work that require resolution (Devine et al., 2010). The prescriber and patient names are automatically matched up by the system, whereas other fields are automatically populated, but always need manual manipulation. The major fields are patient instructions, drug quantity, and drug name (Devine et al., 2010).

Providers have established that limited time is taken to resolve issues with pharmacies including refill requests and prior authorizations. The availability of information on the patients' eligibility and prescription formularies enables prescribers to pick a suitable medication and limit the chances of getting a pharmacy call to substitute the medication with an alternative (Jeffrey & Mary, 2009).

6.2.3 Cost Savings Associated with E-prescribing

E-prescription contributes largely to the reduction of costs in nursing. Carling et al., (2013) established 18% decline in prescription for drugs associated with high costs among the intervention groups relative to the control group. Such a reduction resulted into savings amounting to \$109.976 on novel or new prescriptions within 12 months. Crosson et al., (2011) found that, for every case of hospitalization arising from an adverse drug event (ADE) cost approximately \$9,500; every emergency room visit costs \$430; and every visit to the office of the doctor costs \$112. Yearly savings of approximately 403, 607 were established based on these figures. Martinson & Vallikivi (2016) stated that, with the implementation of the eprescription system, there were improved outcomes on patient health and \$150 billion to \$260 billion in approximated savings, majorly via enhanced adherence to medication over a ten-year period. Besides, increase of 12% in prescriptions picked-up or succeeded when prescribed in relation to written prescriptions. Mcmullen et al., (2013) found that a cost of \$41, 343 was needed to implement a system of e-prescribing, with yearly costs following the implementation of approximately \$16, 332 per year. Moreover, Hernandez et al., (2015) maintained that a cost of \$43, 233 was required to implement a system of e-prescribing, with yearly costs following the implementation of approximately \$15, 624 per year. Carling et al., (2013) also established an 18% reduction in prescription for drugs associated with high costs among the intervention groups relative to the control group. Such a reduction resulted into savings amounting to \$109.976 on novel/new prescriptions within 12 months (Carling et al., 2013).

7 DISCUSSION

This chapter discusses the findings of the study in relation to the findings of past researchers (i.e. literature review section). The chapter begins by discussing the methodological limitations and considerations, and ethics, after which it proceeds to the explanation of the study's findings.

7.1 Methodological Considerations and Limitations

The research was conducted as a literature review. Data was acquired from different data-bases such as, Science Direct, SAGE publications, Emerald, EBSCO and Pub Med. The search strategy or approach employed in the study, as well as publication bias and the number or quantity of databases explored could be the principal limitations to this study. These factors might have limited articles that were accessible or available for the study's review.

7.2 Ethics

Ethical consideration plays a critical role in research work and can be outlined from various angles. In the research work, breaking the ethical rules must be strictly avoided. All the articles used in the case of study are not under copyright violation. To retrieve information from the academic databases, official access should be carried along in the process (Alfano, 2013). The means and progress of nursing research are very much guided by a research nursing ethic. Quotes are not copied directly from the article and all the used quotes are referenced in the reference page. Noted points in the research were carefully compared before making a conclusion. At this level of study, it is understood that recommendation is not allowed, thus, suggestions were only made in the end. To avoid bias; all the studies that contained relevant information were included appropriately. The sources of the research information were only secured from those databases that offered free access.

7.3 Discussion of Findings

The study aimed at exploring the advantages associated with the implementation of the eprescription system in nursing, in relation to the accuracy and efficacy of medication prescription. The study's findings indicate that the increasing employment of the e-prescription in nursing has resulted into improved communication among physicians and nurses, limited prescription errors, and reduced prescription costs and time, thereby leading to a more efficient and streamlined process of medication prescription in nursing

Currently, the increase in the prescription of medications has open doors for more errors associated with drug prescription. E-prescription has led to the elimination of the possibilities of error and can significantly assist in the prevention of approximately 2 million ADEs every year (Jeffrey & Mary, 2009). E-prescription has also been established to minimize errors associated with medication within the ambulatory setting. E-prescription eliminates errors associated with illegibility and assists providers to make informed decisions concerning the medications that should be prescribed to patients. To accomplish this goal by focusing on patients' allergy data and histories, all of which are found within systems that are incorporated with EHRs. Such systems notify prescribers when an interaction or association with other medicines or an allergy occurs or health condition is identified. However, the principal limitations of these alerts or notifications are that, in some situations, they occur when there is limited risk or threat or occur in the absence of true complications. Providers may be overwhelmed with notification, clicking through them, as opposed to reading each of them. As a result, providers may end up missing a significant association/interaction.

E-prescription also contributes to the efficiency of patient care by improving communication among or between physicians and nurses. E-prescription streamlines the process involved in taking the prescription to the pharmacy, obtaining refills, and dispensing the medication (Escobar-Rodriguez et al., 2012). Since the patient is not granted the prescription's hardcopy, the chances of losing the prescription are reduced (Black, 2013). Cases of pharmacy-triggered clarifications have also been limited, decreasing the time spent by providers and pharmacists on the phone, and therefore shortening the time required to fill prescriptions and get it to patients. Increases in monitoring and compliance also result from the implementation of e-prescription.

E-prescription has also been established to contribute significantly to the reduction of costs. Costs savings are realized through improved efficiency, reduction in ADEs, and improved access to formularies on the part of providers (see the table in the appendix for more details on cost reductions by e-prescription). The time spent in handling clarifications is significantly reduced, enabling prescribers to concentrate on patient care. The aspect of cost savings along with improved efficiency and incentives will increase the employment of e-prescription in the

future. These findings match the earlier finding of (Villaseñor & Piscotty, 2016) that, e-prescription reduces costs.

7.4 Implication of the Study to Nursing

This study highlights the need of nurses to embrace technology in their process of care delivery. Embracing technological advancements such as e-prescription enhances the ability of a nurse to provide quality care that is efficient, cost-saving, and time-saving. As such, the implementation or adoption of E-Prescription in the current health care will ensure that nurses not only eliminate medical errors, but also offer quality care to patients in a timely manner. Costs that are incurred in the production of books or documents for preserving patients' medical information will also be eliminated as this information will the stored electronically. It is also vital to note that the process of retrieving or tracking patients' medical information will be made easier and efficient, thereby enhancing timely provision of care to patients.

7.5 Implication of the Study to the Learning Process

This research emphasized the need of the learning process to be tailored to meet the technological requirements of nursing, particularly in relation to the use of services such as e-prescription. As such, the study of technological innovations that enhance the delivery of care should be integrated in the nursing learning process. Such an undertaking will ensure that nursing graduates that come from various learning institutions are equipped with relevant knowledge that will enable them to respond effectively to the needs of patients in the dynamic field of health care. Such an undertaking will also rid medical institutions or hospitals from the expenses of providing E-Prescription training to their staff. Thus, there is a significant need for educators and practitioners to embrace technological innovations and integrate them in the learning process.

8 CONCLUSION

This study's findings suggested that e-prescription had several benefits when it came to increasing the efficiency of nursing in the delivery of patient care. E-prescription results into a reduction in the prescription cost and time, improvement of communication between nurses and physicians, and reduction in prescription errors.

The goal of nurses today is to provide best-practice care that is efficient, cost-effective, and evidence-based in different health institutions. This objective can be accomplished when adequate care is embraced during the delivery of nursing care to patients. With the presence of electronic prescription, the possibility of connecting a big range of health care services and facilities has widely been opened. Nurses are primary users of e-prescription. In Finland, e-prescribing is widely used. This study focuses on identifying how electronic drug prescription (e-prescription) helps nurses achieve excellence in nursing field. The study accomplishes this goal by conducting a review of 11 articles. The findings of the study revealed that-prescription had several benefits when it comes to increasing the efficiency of nursing in the delivery of patient care. E-prescription results into a reduction in the prescription cost and time, improvement of communication between nurses and physicians, and reduction in prescription errors.

Alfano, S.L. 2013. Conducting Research with Human Subjects in International Settings: Ethical Considerations. Yale Journal of Biology Medicine 86, 315–321.

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3767216/

Allison, G.M. Weigel, B. & Holcroft, C. 2015. Does electronic medication reconciliation at hospital discharge decrease prescription medication errors? International Journal of Health Care Quality Assurance 28, 564 – 573.

http://dx.doi.org/10.1108/IJHCQA-12-2014-0113

Baril, C. Gascon V. St-Pierre, L. Lagacé, D. 2014. Technology and medication errors: impact in nursing homes. International Journal of Health Care Quality Assurance 27, 244 – 258.

http://dx.doi.org/10.1108/IJHCQA-03-2013-0029

Black, A. 2013. Non-Medical Prescribing By Nurse Practitioners in Accident & Emergency and Sexual Health: A Comparative Study. Journal of Advanced Nursing, 69(3), 535-545.

http://web.b.ebscohost.com.ezproxy.centria.fi/ehost/pdfviewer/pdfviewer?vid=2&sid=03213 199-f9ef-4545-9204-77d183252a2d%40sessionmgr120&hid=102

Carling, L. L., Kirkehei, I., Dalsbø, T. K. & Paulsen, E. 2013. Risks to Patient Safety Associated With Implementation of Electronic Applications for Medication Management in Ambulatory Care - A Systematic Review. BMC Medical Informatics & Decision Making, 13(1), 1-22.

http://bmcmedinformdecismak.biomedcentral.com/articles/10.1186/1472-6947-13-133

Colepicolo, E. 2015. Information reliability for academic research: review and recommendations. New Library World 116, 646-660.

http://dx.doi.org/10.1108/NLW-05-2015-0040

Coughlan, M. Cronin, P. Frances, R. 2013. Doing a Literature Review in Nursing, Health and Social Care. Sage Publication 92-96.

https://books.google.fi/books?id=GSY1EQELUMC&pg=PA44&dq=literature+review+data+analsis+summary+table&hl=en&sa=X&ved=0ahUKEwjF74zkwzJAhWD2CwKHeZHBqsQ6AEIjAB#v=onepage&q=literature%20review%20data%20analysis%20summary%20table&f=false

Crosson, J. C., Etz, R. S., Shinyi, W., Straus, S. G., Eisenman, D. & Bell, D. S. 2011. Meaningful Use of Electronic Prescribing in 5 Exemplar Primary Care Practices. Annals of Family Medicine, 9(5), 392-397.

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3185481/

Devine, E. Beth., Hollingworth, W., Hansen, R. N., Lawless, N. M., Wilson-Norton, J. L., Martin, D. P., Blough, D. K. & Sullivan, S. D. 2010. Electronic Prescribing at the Point of Care: A Time–Motion Study in the Primary Care Setting. Health Services Research, 45(1), 152-171.

http://web.b.ebscohost.com.ezproxy.centria.fi/ehost/pdfviewer/pdfviewer?vid=8&sid=03213 199-f9ef-4545-9204-77d183252a2d%40sessionmgr120&hid=102

Devine, E. B., Patel, R., Dixon, D. R. & Sullivan, and S. D. 2010. Assessing Attitudes toward Electronic Prescribing Adoption in Primary Care: A Survey of Prescribers and Staff. Informatics in Primary Care, 18(3), 177-187.

http://eds.a.ebscohost.com/ehost/resultsadvanced?sid=7975c1f2-a706-4fa5-8b93-86e239dba30a%40sessionmgr4002&vid=5&hid=4102&bquery=%28Journal+AND+%22on%22+AND+eprescribing+AND+increasing+AND+nursing+AND+efficiency%29&bdata=JmRiPWF-

<u>waCZkYj1idGgmZGI9bmxlYmsmZGI9OGdoJmRiPWhqaCZkYj1seGgmZGI9dGZoJmRiPWJ3aCZkYj10cmgmdHlwZT0xJnNpdGU9ZWhvc3QtbGl2ZQ%3d%3d</u>

Escobar-Rodriguez, T., Monge-Lozano, P. & Romero-Alonso, M. 2012. Acceptance of E-Prescriptions and Automated Medication-Management Systems in Hospitals: An Extension of the Technology Acceptance Model. Journal of Information Systems, 26(1), 77-96.

http://eds.a.ebscohost.com/ehost/resultsadvanced?sid=7975c1f2-a706-4fa5-8b93-86e239dba30a%40sessionmgr4002&vid=5&hid=4102&bquery=%28Journal+AND+%22on%22+AND+eprescribing+AND+increasing+AND+nursing+AND+efficiency%29&bdata=JmRiPWF-

 $\frac{waCZkYj1idGgmZGI9bmxlYmsmZGI9OGdoJmRiPWhqaCZkYj1seGgmZGI9dGZoJmRiPWJ3aCZkYj10cmgmdHlwZT0xJnNpdGU9ZWhvc3QtbGl2ZQ\%3d\%3d}{}$

Grossman, J. M., Gerland, A., Reed, M. C. & Fahlman, C. 2007. Physicians' Experiences Using Commercial E--Prescribing Systems. Health Affairs, 26, 393-40.

http://web.b.ebscohost.com.ezproxy.centria.fi/ehost/pdfviewer/pdfviewer?vid=13&sid=0321 3199-f9ef-4545-9204-77d183252a2d%40sessionmgr120&hid=102

Hernandez, F., Majoul, E., Montes-Palacios, C., Antignac, M., Cherrier, B., Doursounian, L., Feron, J., Robert, C., Hejblum, G., Fernandez, C. & Hindlet, P. 2015. An Observational Study of the Impact of a Computerized Physician Order Entry System on the Rate of Medication Errors in an Orthopaedic Surgery Unit. PLoS ONE, 10(7), 1-12.

http://web.b.ebscohost.com.ezproxy.centria.fi/ehost/pdfviewer/pdfviewer?vid=15&sid=0321 3199-f9ef-4545-9204-77d183252a2d%40sessionmgr120&hid=102

Jeffrey P. H. & Mary A. D. 2009. Leveraging Health Information Technology to Improve Patient Safety. Public Administration & Management, 14(1), 218-237.

http://eds.a.ebscohost.com/ehost/resultsadvanced?sid=7975c1f2-a706-4fa5-8b93-86e239dba30a%40sessionmgr4002&vid=5&hid=4102&bquery=%28Journal+AND+%22on%22+AND+eprescribing+AND+increasing+AND+nursing+AND+efficiency%29&bdata=JmRiPWF-

 $\frac{waCZkYj1idGgmZGI9bmxlYmsmZGI9OGdoJmRiPWhqaCZkYj1seGgmZGI9dGZoJmRiPWJ3aCZkYj10cmgmdHlwZT0xJnNpdGU9ZWhvc3QtbGl2ZQ\%3d\%3d}{}$

LeMire, S.D. Martner, S.G. & Rising, C. 2012. Advanced Practice Nurses' Use of Prescription Drug Monitoring Program Information. The Journal for Nurse Practitioners - JNP 8, 383-405.

http://ac.elscdn.com/S1555415512001079/1s2.0S1555415512001079main.pdf?_tid=5716483ea7b911e5834d00000aacb35e&acdnat=1450685197_c6db32d8b2026fb0239b26dc5f410e6916.

Lisby, M. Nielsen, L.P. Brock, B. & Mainz, J. 2012. How should medication errors be defined? Development and test of a definition. Scandinavian Journal of Public Health 40, 203–210.

10.1177/1403494811435489

Martinson, K., &Vallikivi, L. 2016. European Countries Moving Towards Digital Prescription. World Medical Journal, 62(1), 19-23.

 $\frac{\text{http://web.b.ebscohost.com.ezproxy.centria.fi/ehost/pdfviewer/pdfviewer?vid=20\&sid=0321}{3199-f9ef-4545-9204-77d183252a2d\%40sessionmgr120\&hid=102}$

Mcmullen, C. K., Macey, T. A., Pope, J., Gugerty, B., Slot, M., Lundeen, P., Ash, J. & Carlson, N. 2015. Effect of Computerized Prescriber Order Entry on Pharmacy: Experience of One Health System. American Journal of Health-System Pharmacy, 72(2), 133-142.

 $\frac{\text{http://web.b.ebscohost.com.ezproxy.centria.fi/ehost/pdfviewer/pdfviewer?vid=22\&sid=0321}{3199-f9ef-4545-9204-77d183252a2d\%40sessionmgr120\&hid=102}$

Pagán, J. A., Pratt, W. R. & Sun, J. 2009. Which Physicians Have Access to Electronic Prescribing and Which Ones End Up Using It? Health Policy, 89(3), 288-294.

http://eds.a.ebscohost.com/ehost/resultsadvanced?sid=7975c1f2-a706-4fa5-8b93-86e239dba30a%40sessionmgr4002&vid=5&hid=4102&bquery=%28Journal+AND+%22on%22+AND+eprescribing+AND+increasing+AND+nursing+AND+efficiency%29&bdata=JmRiPWF-

 $\frac{waCZkYj1idGgmZGI9bmxlYmsmZGI9OGdoJmRiPWhqaCZkYj1seGgmZGI9dGZoJmRiPWJ3aCZkYj10cmgmdHlwZT0xJnNpdGU9ZWhvc3QtbGl2ZQ\%3d\%3d}{}$

Pevnick, J. M., Ning L., Asch, S. M., Jackevicius, C. A. & Bell, D. S. 2014. Effect of Electronic Prescribing with Formulary Decision Support on Medication Tier, Copayments, and Adherence. BMC Medical Informatics & Decision Making, 14(1), 79-90.

 $\frac{\text{http://web.b.ebscohost.com.ezproxy.centria.fi/ehost/pdfviewer/pdfviewer?vid=25\&sid=0321}{3199-f9ef-4545-9204-77d183252a2d\%40sessionmgr120\&hid=102}$

Rahmner, P.B. Andersén-Karlsson, F. Arnhjort, M.T. Eliasson, L. Gustafsson L. Jacobsson M. Ovesjö, U. Rosenqvist, S. Sjöviker, G. &Tomson, I. 2004. Physicians' perceptions of possibilities and obstacles prior to implementing a computerized drug prescribing support system", International Journal of Health Care Quality Assurance 17, 173-179.

http://dx.doi.org/10.1108/09526860410541487

Samadbeik, M. Ahmadi, M. & Hosseni, S.M.A. 2013.A Theoretical Approach to Electronic Prescription System: Lesson Learned from Literature Review. Iran Red Crescent Medical Journal 15, Pub Med.

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3950788/

Sebetci, Ö. & Çetin, M. 2015. Developing, applying and measuring an e-Prescription Information Systems Success Model from the perspectives of physicians and pharmacists. Health Policy and Technology 10, 1-10.

http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.hlpt.2015.10.008

Sebetci, Ö. Aksu, G. & Önder, B. 2014. Measuring the Success of E-Prescription System Used By Pharmacy Personnel. Electronic Journal of Social Sciences.13 (49), 292-311.

http://eds.a.ebscohost.com/ehost/resultsadvanced?sid=7975c1f2-a706-4fa5-8b93-86e239dba30a%40sessionmgr4002&vid=5&hid=4102&bquery=%28Journal+AND+%22on%22+AND+eprescribing+AND+increasing+AND+nursing+AND+efficiency%29&bdata=JmRiPWF-

 $\frac{waCZkYj1idGgmZGI9bmxlYmsmZGI9OGdoJmRiPWhqaCZkYj1seGgmZGI9dGZoJmRiPWJ3aCZkYj10cmgmdHlwZT0xJnNpdGU9ZWhvc3QtbGl2ZQ\%3d\%3d$

Smith, A.D. 2006. Barriers to accepting e-prescribing in the USA", International Journal of Health Care Quality Assurance 19,158 – 180.

http://dx.doi.org/10.1108/09526860610651690

Taegtmeyer, A.B. Curkovic, I. Rufibach, K. Corti, N. Battegay, E & Kullak-Ublick, G. A. 2011. Electronic prescribing increases uptake of clinical pharmacologists' recommendations in the hospital setting. British Journal of Clinical Pharmacology 72, 958–964.

10.1111/j.1365-2125.2011.04032.x

Tonette, S. Rocco, M.S. 2009. Literature Reviews, Conceptual Frameworks, and Theoretical Frameworks: Terms, Functions, and Distinctions. Human Resource Development Review 8,120-130.

http://hrd.sagepub.com.ezproxy.centria.fi/content/8/1/120.full.pdf+html

Villaseñor, S. &Piscotty, R.J. 2016. The Current State of E-Prescribing: Implications for Advanced Practice Registered Nurses. Journal of the American Association of Nurse Practitioners, 28(1), 54-61.

http://eds.a.ebscohost.com/ehost/resultsadvanced?sid=7975c1f2-a706-4fa5-8b93-86e239dba30a%40sessionmgr4002&vid=5&hid=4102&bquery=%28Journal+AND+%22on%22+AND+eprescribing+AND+increasing+AND+nursing+AND+efficiency%29&bdata=JmRiPWF-

<u>waCZkYj1idGgmZGI9bmxlYmsmZGI9OGdoJmRiPWhqaCZkYj1seGgmZGI9dGZoJmRiPWJ3aCZkYj10cmgmdHlwZT0xJnNpdGU9ZWhvc3QtbGl2ZQ%3d%3d</u>

APPENDIX: RESULTS

Author and Year	Study Design	Results/Outcomes
Hernandez et al. (2015)	Case study examining the costs and implementation of a system of e-prescribing within a 10-FTE practice of psychiatrists within a non-profit public agency for mental health.	Researchers established a cost of \$43, 233 to implement a system of e-prescribing, with yearly costs following the implementation of approximately \$15, 624 per year.
McMullen et al., (2013)	Administration of internet survey to a nationwide convenience sample of physicians to monitor the implementation and cost of e-prescribing.	Researchers found a cost of \$ 41, 343 to implement a system of e-prescribing, with an annual costs following the implementation of approximately \$16, 332 per year.
Devine et al., (2010)	A literature review of e- prescription with MDS (medi- cation support decision) to establish where MDS im- proves patient safety	Researchers established little proof that e-prescription with a MDS intervention is more helpful/advantageous to the safety of the patient and medication errors reduction than when e-prescribing is a component of stand-alone model or system
Pevnick et al., (2014)	A literature review of e- prescription with MDS to es- tablish where MDS enhances	limited evidence that e- prescription with a MDS in- tervention is more advanta- geous to the safety of the pa-

	the safety of patients	tient and medication errors reduction relative to when e- prescribing is a component of stand-alone system
Jeffrey & Mary (2009)	A non-random prospective research of 12 providers who used e-prescribing relative to 12 providers who continued using paper prescriptions in monitoring the rates of prescribing mistakes	Rates of prescribing error declined from 47% to for every 100 prescriptions to 9% for every 100 prescriptions in a year, after the implementation of e-prescription
Martinson & Vallikivi (2016)	Reviewers evaluated deidentified sets of data from 35 million records of prescription that compared the aspect of adherence to medication in patients associated with eprescriptions to faxed, phoned-in, and paper prescriptions.	Researchers established improved outcomes on patient health and \$150 billion to \$260 billion in approximated savings, majorly via enhanced adherence to medication over a ten-year period. Besides, increase of 12% in prescriptions picked-up/succeeded when prescribed in relation to written prescriptions.
Pagan et al., (2009)	A non-random prospective research of 16 providers who employed e-prescribing relative to 16 providers who still employed paper prescriptions in monitoring the rates of prescribing errors	Rates of prescribing error declined from 43% to per 100 prescription to 6% per 100 prescriptions within a year, approximately a seventh of the former level following the implementation of e-

		prescribing.
Grossman et al., (2007)	A prospective case study of 15 physicians within an educational ambulatory clinic having an enhanced e-prescribing system that supports clinical decision-making; the study aimed at observing prescribing errors.	The rates of prescribing error declined from 36.7% for every 100 prescriptions to 11.6% for every 100 prescriptions after a year of e-prescription, an improvement attributed to increased or enhanced communication among physicians/clinicians during drug prescription.
Sebetci, et al., (2014)	A time-motion and direct observation research executed within three community-based clinics (i.e. primary care clinics) to assess the effect of eprescribing on the efficiency of the prescriber.	More of the prescribers' time was spent on computer. An average of 8 minutes 25 patients every day.
Crosson et al., (2011)	A study/research of 280, 630 alerted/notified prescriptions from clinicians within an ambulatory care with the help of an e-prescription system to approximate the severity and possibility of an adverse drug event (ADE) with every alert or notification	Every case of hospitalization arising from an adverse drug event (ADE) cost approximately \$9,500; every emergency room visit costs \$430; and every visit to the office of the doctor costs \$112. A yearly savings of approximately 403, 607 was established on the basis of these figures.

		Γ
Carling et al., (2013)	Follow-up assessment with 2	Established an18% reduction
	databases queries to determine	in prescription for drugs asso-
	extra prescription claims in-	ciated with high costs among
	formation/data for all patients	the intervention groups rela-
	of the Network Health Plan	tive to the control group. Such
	included within the authors'	a reduction resulted into sav-
	former/original six-month	ings amounting to \$109.976
	research/study	on novel/new prescriptions
		within 12 months.